
TENTERDEN TOWN COUNCIL  

Town Hall, 24 High Street, Tenterden, Kent. TN30 6AN 
 

Website: www.tenterdentowncouncil.gov.uk 
Telephone: 01580 762271 

 

 

Email: townhall@tenterdentowncouncil.gov.uk  
Facsimile: 01580 765647 

 

 

13th May 2022 

 

ANNUAL TOWN MEETING 
 
Notice is hereby given that the Annual Town Meeting will be held in the Assembly 
Room at the Town Hall on MONDAY, 23RD MAY, 2022 at 7.30 pm. The 

meeting will be chaired by the Town Mayor. 
 

AGENDA 
 

1.   WELCOME. 
Welcome by the Town Mayor. 

 
2.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE. 

 

3.   MINUTES. 
To consider and, if approved, confirm and sign the Minutes of the Annual 

Town Meeting held on 24th June 2019 as a correct record. 
[Minutes will be available at the meeting, or may be viewed online at 
www.tenterdentowncouncil.gov.uk. A Paper copy may be obtained from 

the Town Clerk’s office upon request.] 
 

4.   MATTERS ARISING. 
Any matters arising from the minutes of the Annual Town Meeting 2019. 
 

5.   PRESENTATION BY TOWN MAYOR, COUNCILLORS & VISITING 
SPEAKERS. 

 
6.   QUESTIONS, COMMENTS & SUGGESTIONS. 

Subject to stating their name and address, Tenterden residents may raise 

questions, make suggestions or voice concerns. 
 

Tea and coffee will be served after the meeting. 
 

 
Filming, recording, photography and blogging (by any member of the public in 
attendance) will be allowed at this meeting. The Town Council will host an audio 

recording on its website www.tenterdentowncouncil.gov.uk. By attending you 
acknowledge that you may be recorded (by audio or video equipment) and give 

consent to the recording being made available to the public. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this, please speak to a member of Town 

Council staff. 
 

 
End. 

 

 

Public Document Pack



209 
 

T E N T E R D E N  T O W N  C O U N C I L  
 

 
 

MINUTES AND REPORTS OF THE ANNUAL TOWN MEETING 
HELD AT THE TOWN HALL ON 24th JUNE 2019 

 

PRESENT: 
For Tenterden Town Council: 

Town Mayor Cllr. Mrs. J. Curteis, Cllrs. M. Carter, V. Cole, J. Crawford, Mrs. S. 
Ferguson, M. Hickmott, C. Knowles, Dr. L. Lovelidge, K. Mulholland J. Nelson, R. 

Parkin, R. Quinton, Mrs. P. Smith, A. Sugden and Mrs. C. Walder.  Town Clerk Mr. 
P. Burgess, Deputy Town Clerk Mrs. C. Gilbert, Accounts Clerk Mrs. J. McCollum 
and Administrative Assistant Mrs. L. Owers. 

For Kent County Council: 
Cllrs. M. Hill. 

For Ashford Borough Council: 
Cllrs. P. Clokie and J. Link.  Mr. L. Mayatt, Cultural Projects Manager. 

For Kent Police: 

 Inspector J. Atkinson, PCSO K. Richards and Mr. A. Judd (NHW Liaison Officer). 
Also present: 

65 members of the public. 
 
257 WELCOME BY THE TOWN MAYOR. The Town Mayor was in the chair and 

welcomed all attendees. The Councillors of Tenterden Town Council, Ashford 
Borough Council and Kent County Council introduced themselves. Inspector 

Atkinson, PCSO Richards and Mr. Judd also introduced themselves. 
 
258 DATE OF ANNUAL TOWN MEETING.  The Town Clerk announced that both this 

year and last year the Annual Town Meeting should have taken place between 1st 
March and 1st June and apologised for the error.  The Annual Town Meeting 2020 

will take place during the correct date period. 
 
259 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE. Apologies had been received from MP Mr. D. Green 

and Mrs. D. Greaves from Tenterden Museum. 
 

260 MINUTES. The minutes of the Annual Town Meeting held on 25th June 2018 were 
proposed by Cllr. Mrs. Smith and seconded by Cllr. C. Knowles. They were duly 
agreed and signed as a correct record. 

 
261 MATTERS ARISING.  None. 

 
262 PRESENTATION BY THE TOWN MAYOR AND COUNCILLORS.  The Town 

Mayor, Cllr. Mrs. Smith, Cllr. Crawford and the Town Clerk conducted a 

presentation to the public highlighting the challenges over the last year and 
looking forward to the next year.  A copy of the PowerPoint presentation, along 

with the audio recording can be found on the Town Council’s website. 
 

263 REPORTS FROM LOCAL ORGANISATIONS.  Reports had been received in 
advance from Tenterden Lions Club, Tenterden Macular Support Group, St. 
Mildred’s Church, Tenterden & District Museum and St. Michaels Village 

Community Group.  These reports were circulated at the meeting and would be 
made available via the Town Council’s website. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



210 
 

 
264 QUESTIONS, COMMENTS & SUGGESTIONS. 

 
(a) Bridewell Lane.  Mr. A. Keates of Bridewell Lane suggested that the idea of 

turning Bridewell Lane and Highbury Lane into a one-way system should be 

considered.  Mr. Keates had faced many vehicles right up near his front 
door when two vehicles are trying to pass.  The Town Clerk reported that 

this had been proposed before, but residents did not support the idea.  It 
was suggested that Mr. Keates speak to neighbours to suggest the idea and 
the Town Council will put this on the agenda for re-discussion.   

 
(b) Assembly Room Sound System.  Mr. A. Clarke of Henley Meadows asked 

whether the sound system would be replaced as part of the Town Hall 
refurbishment as it was much needed.  Cllr. Mrs. Smith responded that it 
would be.   

 
(c) Tenterden Social Hub.  Mr. R. Isworth of Elmfield reported that the Social 

Hub was running a day-time bus service and if anyone was interested in 
becoming a driver, please could they contact the Social Hub.  Last week 

was National Volunteer Week and the Social Hub are always looking for 
volunteers to help out.  The Social Hub will be holding an open day on 
Friday, 28th June 2019 from 10.00 am to 2.00 pm and everyone is welcome.   

 
(d) Friday Street Market & Town Manager.  Mr. M. Pearson of High Street asked 

how many businesses the Town Council supported and why were outsiders 
trading on the market.  Mr. Pearson asked what the job description of the 
new Town Manager would be.  The Town Clerk responded that the Town 

Council were not subsidising the market; there was a small profit for the 
Town Council.  It is hoped that the market will be extended to attract more 

visitors to the High Street.  With regard to the Town Manager position, a 
job description was being put together in conjunction with Ashford Borough 
Council and the position would be part time.   

 
(e) Speeding in Town.  Mr. J. Vickers of Eastwell Barn Mews raised his concerns 

at the speeding vehicles through the Town, particularly in the early hours 
of Sunday mornings.  The Town Mayor responded that there were several 
Speedwatch Groups set up in the Town, namely St. Michaels and 

Woodchurch Road and there is also the Speed Indicator Device which moves 
between three sites.  Cllr. M. Hill (KCC) reported that some years ago the 

Town Council funded a traffic survey and maybe it was time to conduct 
another one.   

 

(f) Parking in Tenterden.  A lady resident (not named) raised her concerns 
about the lack of parking available in Tenterden and if we are trying to 

promote Tenterden as a place to visit, then this needs to be addressed.  
Cllr. P. Clokie (ABC) responded that every time lack of parking comes up, 
it has to be pointed out that Bridewell Lane car park is not always full.  Cllr. 

Mrs. Smith responded that the cost of parking is an issue.  Cllr. Carter 
reported that funds would become available from Section 106 and parking 

on exit systems could then be installed.   
 
(g) Citizens Advice.  Mrs. A. Lewis, a friend of Ashford Citizens Advice, asked 

whether in the redesign of the Town Hall if the Citizens Advice service would 
still be accommodated.  The Town Clerk confirmed that they would be and 

the new building layout will allow for private rooms.   
 Page 2



211 
 

(h) Pedestrian Crossings.  Mrs. J. Crickmore-Porter of High Street asked whether 
the pedestrian traffic lights located near the Smallhythe Road junction could 

be assimilated into the three-way traffic lights rather than be an extra set 
further up.  There are still issues with drivers not realising the pedestrian 
traffic lights are on red when accelerating from the junction.   

 
Mrs. Crickmore-Porter also raised the problem of elderly people who wish to 

use the Post Office and live on the opposite side of the Road, cannot cross 
easily; please could this be reconsidered. 

 

Cllr. M. Hill (KCC) responded that this had been raised before and the cost 
of installing a traffic island near the top of Station Road was investigated.  

KCC will not pay for an island out of funds as the traffic island would cost 
£30,000 plus infrastructure costs; additional funding would be required.   
 

Mrs. Crickmore-Porter also enquired as to why there are no hanging baskets 
this year.  The Town Clerk responded that it was a KCC requirement that 

lamp standards are stress tested; the Town Council will fund the work once 
completed by KCC.  Unfortunately, it is highly unlikely that baskets will be 

up this year, but the process will start earlier next year.   
 
Cllr. Mrs. Ferguson also raised her concerns regarding the pedestrian 

crossing at the bottom of the High Street and thought that changing the 
lights to high LEDs was being considered.  Community Warden, Ms. J. Vos 

also reported on the dangers of the traffic lights and that she had suffered 
near misses herself.   
 

(i) Leigh Green.  Mrs. H. Whitehead of Appledore Road asked whether residents 
near Leigh Green would receive a reduction in Council tax due to the grass 

verges not being cut in the Leigh Green area.  There were also problems with 
A Boards near the industrial estate and many of the A Boards are for 
businesses that no longer trade there.  The Town Clerk responded that Leigh 

Green was not included in the Caretaker Scheme as most areas fall in the 
30mph speed limit.  This would be the responsibility of KCC and it will be 

investigated.  With regard to the A Boards, KCC had delegated authority to 
the Town Council to police A Boards in the Town and the Town Council will 
write to all businesses on Leigh Green to enforce the rulings.   

 
(j) Rephasing of Traffic Lights.  Mr. M. Pearson of High Street asked Cllr. M. Hill 

(KCC) when the rephasing of the traffic lights would take place in the Town 
as he understood that this was part of the Section 106 from Tent1a.  Cllr. 
Hill agreed to investigate. 

 
(k) CCTV in St. Michaels.  Cllr. J. Link (ABC) enquired as to whether CCTV 

cameras would be installed in St. Michaels.  ABC had told Cllr. Link that if 
the Town Council buy the cameras, ABC would monitor them.  The Town 
Clerk reported that he had been told by the CCTV Officer at ABC that once 

the roll out of new cameras across the Borough had taken place, additional 
cameras may be available and would be open to bids.   

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Page 3



212 
 

 
265 CLOSE. There being no further business the Town Mayor thanked everyone for 

attending and closed the meeting. Attendees were invited to remain for 
refreshments. 

 

The meeting opened at 7.00pm and closed at 8.30pm. 
 

 
 
 

 
 

The foregoing Minutes and Reports were confirmed and signed at the Annual Town 
Meeting on 18th May 2020. 

 

 
 

 
Chairman …………………………………………………… (18.05.2020) 

Page 4



ATTENDANCE OF COUNCILLORS AT MEETINGS 2021-2022 

 

 

T
O

W
N

 

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 

P
L
A
N

N
IN

G
 

IN
T
E
R
N

A
L
 

E
X
T
E
R
N

A
L
 

T
o
ta

l: 

Total Meetings: 17 13 11 11 52 

Kayleigh Brunger-

Randall 
2 1 1 1 

5/5 

(100%) 

Mike Carter 12 5 7 7 
31/52 
(60%) 

Rosemary Clarke 6  4 4 
14/18 
(78%) 

Vic Cole 13 9 8 8 
38/52 
(73%) 

John Crawford 12 10 6 6 
34/52 

(65%) 

Jean Curteis 17 13 11 11 
52/52 

(100%) 

Sue Ferguson 15  10 10 
35/39 

(90%) 

Harry Hickmott 10  7 7 
24/39 
(62%) 

Andrew Holcombe 7 4 4 4 
19/23 
(83%) 

Callum Knowles 12 7 8 8 
35/49 
(71%) 

Lisa Lovelidge 15 7 9 9 
40/52 

(77%) 

Ken Mulholland 8  5 5 
18/39 

(46%) 

Justin Nelson 17  11 11 
39/39 

(100%) 

Russel Parkin 11 11 9 9 
40/52 
(77%) 

Roger Quinton 13 10 8 8 
39/52 
(75%) 

Pam Smith 14  8 9 
31/39 
(79%) 

 

 

 
 

 

Not a member of this committee attendance not required. 

 
 

 

 
Not a member of this committee, non-members required to attend. 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



 

 

 

 

REPORTS FROM OUTSIDE ORGANISATIONS 

(in alphabetical order) 

Page 6



St. Michaels Community Group

Chairman’s Report 2022
St. Michaels Community Group
First of all a warm vote of thanks to all our members, associates and of course residents, who supported our activities 
throughout 2021, in spite of the difficulties and uncertainty over the past couple of years.

Tributes in the Park
It just gets better and the 2021 event proved to be another outstanding success. Excellent feedback with many keen to plan 
their 2022 social calendar around this year’s event! Although is was a close run thing, the weather was with us. Tributes this 
year is scheduled for Saturday 30th July.
This officially recognised community event is supported by Tenterden Town Council and Ashford Borough Council by way 
of grants. We also received personal donations from various Councillors and local businesses. Due to being unable to hold 
fundraising events to cover the costs of Tribuites,the raffle money raised was retained for Community Group funds. Bucket 
collections and donations from the ice cream van, Silcock’s burger bar and Jerry Avener Catering, all helped to offset the cost 
of putting on the event.

Ox Lane Green and The Point
A vote of thanks to John Hoad who continues to keep Ox Lane Green looking a real treat and to the volunteers who look 
after the planters at Ox Lane and the Point. John has subsequently been given a Civic Award for his continued efforts.

Remembrance at The Point and Ox Green
With the addition of the ‘soldier’ silhouettes at both areas, another fitting and respectful commemoration to those who fell in 
both the World Wars was achieved. As usual the volunteers always seem to find something to add that further enhances the 
display.

Christmas
In the teeth of driving rain and sleet we managed to erect the tree for another festive season. The tree, with the added 
decoration around the fence, arguably continues to be one of the best around. Thanks to Dave East for donating more lights. 
Due to Covid constraints and red tape, it was decided to dispense with the lighting ceremony and following party in the 
village hall.

Ukraine
We are all appalled and united in supporting the Ukrainian people in their fight against the invasion and aggression of Russia. 
We are flying the Ukrainian flag and have added blue and yellow flowers.

HM Platinum Jubilee
Tributes in the Park this year will be dedicated to HM Queen Elizabeth II. As Tenterden have arranged Jubilee Weekend events, 
there are none planned for St. Michaels. We will however, ensure The Point and Ox Lane Green are suitably decorated with 
flags and bunting. Tenterden Schools Trust arts department will offering their own tribute to the Jubilee with an artistic display 
that will be sited on the podium at The Point. We look forward in excited anticipation to what they will come up with.

St. Michaels Bites
We usually produce a twice-yearly newsletter that is delivered (as far as is possible) to every home in St. Michaels. Along with 
keeping residents up to date on the various activities and some local news, we feel its main purpose is to help create a sense 
of community within the village.

Lighting the Sign
With a brand new signpost in place, we have been given permission by TTC to erect some spotlights to illuminate the sign, 
subject to the installation being carried out by a qualified electrician.

St. Michaels Recreation Ground
Various enhancments to the Rec have been proposed by TTC, which includes our ongoing request for the planting of trees. 
We have been assured that these plans are still in the pipeline.

Fundraising
The Community Group continues to engage in fundraising events to provide St. Michaels with free entertainment in the form 
of Tributes and the Christmas Tree. Well attended events in the village hall and Sinden Theatre have helped to ensure we can 
meet those commiments. As ever, we are extremely grateful for the funding and unqualified support from TTC whenever we 
ask for assistance in various village initiatives.

Page 7



St Michaels Village Hall 

Registered charity 1171326 

Update report May 2022 

 

 
  

The current Hall has been operating since 1967 and is the most important 

community asset in the village. In many ways it’s the beating heart of St 

Michaels providing facilities for all manner of events spanning sport, 

leisure and entertainment. Full details and how to book can be found by 

visiting our website www.stmichaelsvillagehall.org. It continues to be 

managed by a team of 9 unpaid trustees and is accredited by ACRK 

(Action for Communities in Rural Kent).  

 

The hall is self-financing through regular bookings and one of events plus 

fund raisers such as Bingo, Fayres and parties. Recently we organised and 

hosted the Kent Police Male Voice Choir which proved to be an 

extremely popular evening. With the newly extended kitchen we are 

especially suitable for wedding receptions, wakes, adult and children’s 

parties. The capability of the hall is limited only by the extent of your 

imagination and we are open to consider any sensible booking 

proposition.  

 

Over the past several years as a result of fundraising, local authority 

grants from KCC, ABC and a low interest loan from TTC we’ve had 

Page 8

http://www.stmichaelsvillagehall.org/


extensive refurbishment & development involving over £250,000 of 

investment which has included  

 

• A new roof and fully stocked commercial kitchen  

• Revarnished floor, cupboards, LED lighting and seating. 

• New stage curtains and complete redecoration throughout 

 

During the pandemic in common with most businesses we sadly had to 

close the operation but, greatly benefited from various government grants 

that were available. At the last AGM we agreed and have now put in 

place a financial reserves account to accommodate any future pandemic 

or major unbudgeted expenditure 

 

Having gradually reopened in keeping with government guidelines the 

hall is fully operational again, free of all restrictions and back to 

approximately 75 % capacity. The future looks bright for what is a key 

asset to St Michaels both functionally and socially.  

 

Ken Mulholland 

Chair of Trustees 

Page 9



TENTERDEN BOWLS CLUB - Written Report for Annual Town Meeting. May 2022 

Tenterden Bowls Club was founded in 1908 and is now established on the Recreation 
Ground.


We are a vibrant, happy and expanding group, having just opened the new 2022 season. 
Everyone is welcome to see if bowls is the sport for them. We have 2 fully qualified 
coaches and games are played by over 70 people on the green in the normal course of a 
typical week.


You will note the smart and improved buildings on the green. The clubhouse has been 
refurbished internally and externally and can now be used all year round.


The Club has had a rocky journey over the last five years to achieve what you see now. 
When TTC decided to re-order the Recreation Ground, the Club was told that it would be 
provided with a new green and facilities in the area of the current football pitch. This 
proposal was eventually shelved and replaced by the suggestion that our facilities remain 
in the same place but with an extended Clubhouse, incorporating toilets and changing 
rooms, which could be used, when available, by other organisations within the town.


Much hard work went into raising funds and we obtained grant offers from the following. 
TTC-£125,000. Sport England-£50,000. KCC-£7,500. ABC-£6,000. Persimmon-£1,000.  
Another £16,000 was raised from miscellaneous donations and Club fundraising events.


Due to delays in the planning process, fire and other requirements, increased costs of 
building materials and the urgent need to prevent further deterioration of the existing 
buildings, a decision was made to refurbish rather than rebuild. As a result, the grant from 
TTC was reduced to £60,000, (recently publicised by TTC in the Kentish Express). We had 
already secured the funds from KCC, ABC and Persimmon. Sport England could no 
longer commit to their original amount but offered to cover any shortfall. At the time we 
calculated this to be £11,000 and Sport England have duly paid this amount.


TTC has subsequently reduced their offer to £56,074.83, thus creating a shortfall in the 
funds available for us to finish decorating, replace water heaters, improve the plumbing 
and make the site more secure. 


We received the builder’s final invoice of £56,125.91 in March, but have not been able to 
settle the account as the funds from TCC are being withheld until a new lease has been 
signed. Proceedings are now being held up due to corrections having to be applied to the 
new lease which was drawn up by TTC solicitors. We sincerely hope the matter can be 
finalised soon as we do not wish to incur late payment penalties from the builder.


The green is in good condition and playing well due to the hard work of our own 
groundsman and helpers. Our members are looking forward to a successful and 
enjoyable season, playing competitions both internally and against other clubs, and 
welcoming visiting teams to our much improved facilities.


Page 10



REPORT ON THE TENTERDEN CHARITIES FOR 2021 

 

Tenterden Charities –  incorporating Dr Curteis’s  Schooling & Clothing 

Foundation, The Charity of Ann Shelton, Hariot Pomfret, Dame Frances Norton 

and Jane Maynard. 

The Trustees met three times during the course of 2021 and made 6 

educational grants  totalling £1800.00 and  Relief in Need grants of £2000.00.  

The Trustees met in March 2021 at which time the accounts for 2020 were 

approved and signed. 

The Trustees at present are Dr Raymond Crawfurd ( Chairman ) ,  Revd. Canon 

Lindsay Hammond , Mr Jack Gillett,   Cllr.Jean Curteis  and Mrs Judith Harper.  

Clerk for the charity is Michael Wells who can be contacted on 01580 762353 

or by e-mail wells.associates2@gmail.com. 

 

 

Page 11

mailto:wells.associates2@gmail.com


TENTERDEN & DISTRICT LOCAL HISTORY SOCIETY 
www.tenterdenhistory.co.uk 

 

Report for the Annual Town Meeting – Monday 23rd May 2022 

Membership of the T&DLHS is open to all who are interested in the history of our lovely Kentish 

Town and its surroundings.  We hold regular illustrated talks, coffee morning socials and summer 

excursions; publish newsletters on original local topics; carry out research and genealogical 

enquiries; lead tours of the town; maintain a large, comprehensive library of local history books. Our 

friendly organisation is run by a voluntary Committee elected by the members, with an annual 

subscription of £6. Our donations to local projects include: the preservation of Horatia Nelson’s 

tapestry of St Mildred’s Church; signposting the local PLUTO route; and most recently the 

development and publication of a freely available Family Fun Trail for the town.  The T&DLHS would 

like to thank the Tenterden Town Council for their donation towards this project. To find out more 

about us, please visit: www.tenterdenhistory.co.uk 

 

 

Page 12

http://www.tenterdenhistory.co.uk/


     A potted histroy of TENTERDEN FOLK FESTIVAL 
 
  

 
 
The first “Tenterden Folk Day” took place on Saturday 2nd October 1993 and, according to the 
programme, there were 15 billed guests, 13 Morris sides and 18 events.  The guests included 

some familiar names such as Band of Two, Pete Castle, Lucy Castle, Keith 
Kendrick, Jez Lowe, Bing Lyle and Tonbridge Mummers, as well as some less 
familiar names including “Lo! & Behold” which was a one of collaboration 
between Jez, Pete, Lucy and Bing especially for the event.  The dance sides 
listed are all well known teams who we mainly still see at Tenterden, including 
Bishop Gundulf, East Kent Morris, Kits Coty Morris,  Maenads and of course the 
host side Woodchurch Morris. The craft fair was an important part of the 
programme from the beginning and in 1993 it took place in the Junior and 
Infant School Halls and was organised by Linda 
Robards from Ashford Library.  The other 
Committee members are listed in the programme 

as Alan Castle who is still there 30 years on, Christina Bax (now 
Fuller) from Ashford Borough Council, Keith Rundell from Kent Arts 
and Libraries, Dave Grabham founder of Woodchurch Morris was 
the dance co-ordinator and the late Cllr Anne Thomas who 
remained closely involved until her sad death in 2011.  Sponsors of 
that first folk day are listed as Ashford Borough Council, Kent 
County Council, Tenterden Chamber of Commerce and Folk Spots 
and the support of Tenterden Town Council and Woodchurch 
Morris is also noted.  The venues for sing-a-rounds were the Vine 
and the Eight Bells with the evening concert taking place in the 
upstairs room of the Eight Bells, which we still miss!                   
 
Tenterden Folk Day Trust was formed in 1994 and registered as a charity with Alan and Dave as 

the first Trustees, together with Cllr John Link and Jerry Smith who was the 
landlord of the Eight Bells.  The Bells was also the home of Tenterden Folk 
Club.  Anne Thomas became a Trustee the following year as did then Cllr Mike 
Levy.  The second folk day in 1994 actually started on Friday evening with a 
Friday Folk Club upstairs in the Eight Bells with John Kirkpatrick topping the 
bill.  The programme guest list includes such stalwarts as the late Bob & Kathy 
Drage, Bo Foakes, Bob Kenward, Vic and Tina Smith (with The Sussex Pistols) 
and many more.  The festival had already started to develop and in 1995 
there were nearly 30 guests listed including Martyn Wyndham Read and the 
late Johnny Collins and a Friday evening sing-a-round was added.  By now we 
were also holding the Eight Bells folk club twice a month and also running the 

educational project “Bards, Ballads and Beyond”.  The late Roy Harris was a 
guest for the first time at the 1996 Folk Day as was Andy Turner.  Storyteller 
Taffy Thomas joined us in 1997 with Tim Laycock.  Taffy has subsequently been 
awarded the MBE and was also Storyteller Laureate.  
 
The next big change was in 1998 when the event was re-branded “Tenterden 
Folk Festival” and for the first time a few events were added on the Sunday.  
The guest list was headed by Martin Carthy who had recently been award the 
MBE and headlined a sell out concert in the Eight Bells.  The barn dance band 
that year was The Cock and Bull Band, one of the best known bands on the 
festival circuit.   We continued our policy of including some of the best 
traditional English singers on the guest list in 1999 when we booked both The 
Copper Family and Ian Campbell.  By now the programme lists 25 Morris sides.  

Page 13



     A potted histroy of TENTERDEN FOLK FESTIVAL 
 
  

 
In 2000 we staged a “Special Millennium Concert” on Friday evening at Homewood School which 
featured Martin Carthy and John Kirkpatrick supported by Tan Tethera and Pete and Lucy Castle.  
This was partly funded by a Millennium Grant from Ashford Borough Council and kick started 
the festival in to the new decade.  2001 guest list included  Martyn Wyndham Read with No 
Man’s Band and Cockersdale.  Rod Shearman who was due to appear sadly died in the preceding 
July.   
 

We celebrated the 10th Tenterden Folk festival in 2002 with another concert 
at Homewood School which this time featured The New Scorpion Band.  
Other guests this year included Tim Laycock, Dave Webber & Annie 
Fentiman, Brian Peter & Gordon Tyrrall and many more.  In 2003 we 
experimented with a concert featuring Fanfare Ciocarlia, a brass band from 
Romania and other guests included Johnny Collins and Graham Knights, 
Shirley Collins and Joe Stead. Guests in 2004 included Pete Harris & Mick 
Ryan and Sarah Grey and in 2005 we were pleased to book Ashley Hutchings 
with his then new young band The Rainbow Chasers as well as Pete Coe, Bill 
Whalley & Dave Fletcher and Jerry Epstein from the USA who returned in 
2006.  Other guests in 2006 included the young singer Tim van Eyken, Tom 
Lewis and Kimber’s Men. 

 
In 2007 we changed the format of the programme from the small leaflet 
to a booklet and introduced advertising to help fund it so that we could 
continue to give it out free of charge.  With the growth of the festival the 
leaflet was becoming cramped and too difficult to read.  The list of guests 
was 32 names long and there were 33 dance sides listed.  This was the first 
year of the festival without the popular Eight Bells which had been taken 
over by Café Rouge so the Friday evening concert moved to the Tenterden 
Club.  In 2008 the Barn Dance was moved to Friday evening and featured 
The Committee Band.  Other guests included The Askew Sisters, Jim 
Bainbridge, The Claque and Mawkin.    2009 was the year we added full 
colour to the programme.  It will also be remembered as the year when 
Johnny Collins died in July and Jim Magean joined Graham Knights in 
presenting a concert in his memory.  Other guests included Brian Peters, Craig Morgan Robson, 
Geckoes and Jeff Warner (USA)     
 
2010 was the year we added a special concert on Thursday evening with The Ram Company at 
The Sinden Theatre and included a full programme of events though out Friday.  Other guests 

included Roy Harris, The Claque and many more.  The weather is 
always important when organising the festival and 2010 was the year 
we dreaded.  Thursday and Friday were very wet and windy and it 
continued to rain on and off throughout the weekend.  The wind and 
rain were so bad we were unable to erect the newly introduced 
marquees we were to use for the craft fair on the Recreation Ground.  
However 2011 more than made up for this with the hottest October 
day on record with temperatures peaking at 31c on the Saturday and 
sing-a-rounds at the William Caxton moved into the garden where 
people were wearing shorts and sun hats.  The big marquee and music 
showcases on the Recreation Ground were very popular.  Along with 
many others the 2011 guest list included Ashley Hutchings and Blair 

Dunlop who performed at the Thursday evening concert the Town Hall and The Askew Sisters, 
Mary Humphreys & Anahata, JigJaw, Kimbers Men and Pete Morton. 

Page 14



     A potted histroy of TENTERDEN FOLK FESTIVAL 
 
  

 
Covid-19 caused the postponement of the festival in 2020 but a very successful virtual event 
was held online.  We managed to go ahead with the festival in 2021 despite not only the 
continuing pandemic, but also the sudden closure of petrol stations caused by a shortage of 
delivery drivers, and some of the heaviest rain we have had during a festival.   
 
As well as the traditional English singers and musicians we have included a variety of guests from 
overseas.  As well as those mentioned above these have included Ioan 
Pop from Romania (1994 and 1995), a group of musicians and dancers 
from Vychodna in Slovakia (1997), Die Erben from Germany (1998), 
Altemet from Holland and Grensestrok from Norway (2001), Dorra & 
Volmar from Germany (2002), Mirium Erasmus (formerly Backhouse) 
from South Africa (2003 and 2006), Jali Sherrifo Conteh from the Gambia 
(2004 and 2007), Kausary from the Andes and Latin America (2007), Nibs 
van de Spuy from South Africa (2009).  Jeff Warner from the USA is a 
regular guest as are The Morena Slovak Dance Company.  
 
Tenterden Folk Club:  1n 1994 the folk club relocated to The Eight Bells in Tenterden High Street 
having previously operated in some form around Ashford and nearby villages since the mid 

1970s when it started as The Victoria Folk Club.  It naturally 
became part of the operations of the Trust.  Jerry Smith was 
the new landlord and made the club very welcome and we 
occasionally booked guests in the big upstairs room as well 
as holding fortnightly singers nights in the bar.  Three 
landlords and about 15 years later the Eight Bells closed as 
a public house and the club moved around until it settled in 
The Woolpack Hotel for several years until January 2011.  
The club continued to run as a successful sing-a-round in the 

bar on the second Tuesday of the month at The William Caxton until Covid caused the club to 
suspend operations.  We hope to re-open the folk club once the future of the Caxton is more 
secure.         
 
 

Educational projects:  The Trust got involved in 
running educational projects in local schools in 1994 
when we received a grant from South East Arts to 
help fund the first series of workshops.  Also in 1994 
we promoted a concert with Andrew Cronshaw as 
part of his "Splendid Venues Tour".  The concert and 
an afternoon Schools Workshop, took place in St. 
Mildred's Parish Church.  For several years we also 
provided workshops as part of Kent County Council’s 
Kentweek Festival for School.  We have run 

workshops in numerous junior and secondary schools in Ashford and Tenterden and right across 
Kent, led by professional musicians including Pete 
Castle, Keith Kendrick, Bing Lyle, Bob Kenward, Lucy 
Castle and Pete Coe.  We currently still running song 
and dance workshops for the special needs students at 
Wyvern School in Ashford with Ros Sewell and Chris 
Harrison from Morrigan still offer these popular 
workshops to schools each year and the students and 
teachers always enjoy them. 

Page 15



     A potted histroy of TENTERDEN FOLK FESTIVAL 
 
  

 
Special events: 
Free railway concert: 
It was a special one off event that led to the start of the Festival in 1993.  
In 1992 Ashford was celebrating 150 years of being a railway town and 
holding a “Railway Festival” and Christina Bax, the Arts Officer, asked 
Alan Castle if he would like to organise a folk music event as part of the 
festival.  With the grand sum of £250 from the Council and the use of 
The Rainbow Room at Tenterden Leisure Centre agreed, he booked Tim 
Laycock, Doug Hudson, the recently formed Woodchurch Morris and 
Tonbridge Mummers and a successful free concert took place on 
Saturday 2nd June 1992.  Alan and Dave Grabham then went on to form 

a committee to organise the first Tenterden Folk Day in 1993 and Woodchurch Morris become 
the host side.          
 
The Trust has promoted numerous concerts and dances in various venues including The Eight 
Bells, The Saddlery at The White Lion, The Tenterden Club, The Town Hall and the Sinden Theatre 
at Homewood School, as well as in Ashford and Maidstone.  Some of these have been joint 
venues with other organisations such as KCC’s “Celts in Kent”, “Kite Festival” and subsequent 
“Kent Week” festivals, the ill fated “Ashford International Festival”, the early days of Ashford’s 
“Create” festival, Folk at the Drum and others.  One memorable event in 1994 was a Victorian 
Folk and Music Hall evening in a big top on Newtown Green in Ashford as part of Ashford 
Borough Council’s “Summer Festival”.  We also promoted a series of concerts dedicated to folk 
songs from and about Kent performed by singers and musicians 
from Kent which took place in the Cobtree Museum at Maidstone 
and the Beacon at Tunbridge Wells as well as The Tenterden Club.   
Following this we were asked to recommend musicians to play at 
an official VIP reception at Kent County Show one year.  We try 
whenever possible to work with other arts and community 
organisations or Councils to include folk music in their events.  
One of our most high profile and successful special events was in 
2006 when “Produced in Kent” asked us to provide some 
traditional folk song, music and dance at the Kent County Show.        
 
The Kent County Show (2006):  
In July we set up a dance floor, stage and PA in what was called “The Produced in Kent Village” 
at the County Show and presented three long days of shows partly funded by South East Folk 
Arts Network (SEFAN).  Guests who appeared included Duck Soup, Safron Summerfield, 
Meridian, Petteridge Light Orchestra, Bob Kenward, John Barden, Pete Castle and Marian 
Button.  Dancing was provided by Copperfield Clog, Taproots Appalachian and Wolfshead and 
Vixen.  Many thousands of people passed through the Village and saw and heard folk music that 
weekend.    
 
Tenterden Folk Festival 2022, the 29th live festival, will take place over four days from Thursday 

29th September to Sunday 2nd October. The first of the 50 or so 
events will be the Thursday evening concert in The Tenterden 
Club which will feature regular guests Dick Miles and Keith 
Kendrick & Sylvia Needham. This year’s guests range from Jack 
Hogsden, a student from Sussex currently undertaking a Folk 
Music Degree at Newcastle University, to four brothers who 
make up the Wilson Family a cappella harmony group from 
Newcastle. Other guests include Jack Rutter, Si Barron and many 

Page 16



     A potted histroy of TENTERDEN FOLK FESTIVAL 
 
  

 
more. Popular local band Foot Down have established themselves on the national festival scene 
and will be playing for the English Barn Dance on Friday evening with caller John Sweeney.  Some 
of the other festival highlights will be the numerous free music 
sessions in some of the local pubs, that performers come from all 
over the country to take part in, and of course the hundreds of 
Morris dancers, folk display dancers and street entertainers, who 
will perform around the town centre over the weekend and, on 
Saturday, process along the High Street. As well as all the music 
and song events in various venues around the town there will be 
a large marquee for the craft fair and stalls and free music and dance stages on the Recreation 
Ground.  More details of the weekend’s events, the full list of guest artists, Morris sides, etc. and 
details of how to buy tickets can be found on the website at www.tenterdenfolkfestival.org.uk.       
 

 

Page 17

http://www.tenterdenfolkfestival.org.uk/


Page 18


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES.
	5 PRESENTATION BY TOWN MAYOR, COUNCILLORS & VISITING SPEAKERS.
	Organisations front cover
	St Michaels Village Community Group
	St Michaels Village Hall
	Tenterden Bowls Club
	Tenterden Charities
	T&DLHS Annual Town Meeting 23 05 22
	Tenterden Folk Festival
	Tenterden Twinning Association


